
Democratic Services 
 
 

 

 

 
 

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE (SPECIAL 
MEETING) 

 
Wednesday 19 June 2024 at 7.30 pm 

 
Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall 

 
Online access to this meeting is available on YouTube: Link to online broadcast 

 
The members listed below are summoned to attend the Strategy and Resources Committee 
meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this 
agenda. 
 

Councillor Neil Dallen (Chair) 
Councillor Hannah Dalton (Vice-
Chair) 
Councillor Kate Chinn 
Councillor Alex Coley 
 

Councillor Alison Kelly 
Councillor Robert Leach 
Councillor Lucie McIntyre 
Councillor Phil Neale 
 

 
Yours sincerely 

 
Chief Executive 
 
For further information, please contact democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 
01372 732000 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

No emergency drill is planned to take place during the meeting. If the fire alarm sounds 
continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the building by the 
nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital 
that you follow their instructions.   

 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 

 Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but 
move to the assembly point at Dullshot Green and await further instructions; and 

 Do not re-enter the building until told that it is safe to do so. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLU1GWtI_OsxUcyTb2u4WGNNV7n-MGYVaZ


 

Public information 

Please note that this meeting will be held at the Town Hall, Epsom and will be available to observe 
live using free YouTube software. 

A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda. A limited number 
of seats will be available on a first-come first-served basis in the public gallery at the Town Hall. If you wish 
to observe the meeting from the public gallery, please arrive at the Town Hall reception before the start of 
the meeting. A member of staff will show you to the seating area. For further information please contact 
Democratic Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 

Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on the Council’s 
website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes. 

Agendas, reports and minutes for this Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app for iPad, 
Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information regarding this 
Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk. 

 

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 

There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose confidential 
or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Should any such matters arise during the course of discussion of the below items or should the 
Chair agree to discuss any other such matters on the grounds of urgency, the Committee may wish to 
resolve to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted. 

 

Questions and statements from the Public 

Questions and statements from the public are not permitted at this Special meeting of the Committee. 
Annex 4.2 of the Epsom & Ewell Borough Council Operating Framework sets out which Ordinary meetings 
of  Committees are able to receive public questions and statements, and the procedure for doing so. 

 

Filming and recording of meetings 

The Council allows filming, recording and photography at its public meetings. By entering the Council 
Chamber and using the public gallery, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 

Members of the Press who wish to film, record or photograph a public meeting should contact the 
Council’s Communications team prior to the meeting by email at: communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk 

Filming or recording must be overt and persons filming should not move around the room whilst filming nor 
should they obstruct proceedings or the public from viewing the meeting. The use of flash photography, 
additional lighting or any non-handheld devices, including tripods, will not be allowed. 

mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/council/about-council/governance/Annex%204-2%20-%20Protocol%20Members%20of%20Public%20Speaking%20.pdf
mailto:communications@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To receive declarations of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or other 

registrable or non-registrable interests from Members in respect of any item to 
be considered at the meeting. 
 

2. HOOK ROAD CAR PARK AND SGN SITE - MUTUAL EASEMENT  (Pages 5 - 
10) 

 
 

This report proposes the Council and the developer of the SGN Site enter into a 
mutual deed of easement to facilitate, through potential future redevelopment, 
the enhancement of future public realm and connectivity across the Hook Road 
Car Park and/or SGN Site.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 

HOOK ROAD CAR PARK AND SGN SITE - MUTUAL EASEMENT 

 

Head of Service: Mark Shephard, Head of Property and 
Regeneration 

Report Author Mark Shephard 

Wards affected: (All Wards); 

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No 

If yes, reason urgent decision 
required: 

 

Appendices (attached):    None 

 

Summary 

This report proposes the Council and the developer of the SGN Site enter into a mutual 
deed of easement to facilitate, through potential future redevelopment, the enhancement 
of future public realm and connectivity across the Hook Road Car Park and/or SGN Site.  

 

 

Recommendation (s) 

The Committee is asked to: 

(1) Agree to the Council entering a mutual deed of easement with the developer 
of the SGN Site to grant reciprocal access rights over each site’s road 
infrastructure. 

(2) Agree the mutual deed of easement is conditional (i.e. will not be completed 
or take effect) until the developer of the SGN Site is granted planning 
permission. 

(3) Agree the mutual deed of easement be granted at nil premium to reflect the 
mutual benefit to each landowner as described in this report. 

(4) Note that the Head of Property & Regeneration, in consultation with the Chief 
Finance Officer and Chief Legal Officer, has express authority to take all 
necessary actions further to the above decisions being made that commit 
resources, as is necessary and appropriate.    

 

1 Reason for Recommendation 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 
1.1 To facilitate the wider community benefits of enhanced public realm and 

connectivity across the redevelopment of the wider Hook Road Car Park 
and/or SGN Site.    

2 Background 

2.1 The Council has held a long-standing ambition to promote the 
redevelopment of Epsom’s former Hook Road / East Street SGN Gas 
Works site.  The SGN site is not in the Council’s ownership but is located 
directly adjacent to the Council’s Hook Road Multi-Storey Car Park.  

2.2 The Gas Works were previously included in the Council’s 2011 “Plan E” 
Epsom Town Centre Area Action Plan (a strategic policy document) as 
part of the wider “Utilities Site”, which also included the Council’s car park 
and Thames Water site. 

2.3 More recently, the Reg 18 March 2023 consultation of the Draft Local Plan 
and November 2023 consultation of the Epsom Town Centre Masterplan, 
both included the Council’s car park and the former Gas Works site as a 
potentially deliverable redevelopment opportunity. 

2.4 Paragraph 4.12 (page 82) of the Draft Local Plan states; “There is the 
opportunity to redevelop the site into a prominent, high density, mixed use 
development, which would result in an improved, attractive and better 
utilised environment to the eastern gateway of the town centre.  New 
development would offer the opportunity for a better connected and 
rejuvenated area that would attract new residents and businesses to 
Epsom Town Centre.” 

2.5 The Epsom Town Centre Masterplan reinforces this ambition and 
Paragraphs 3.28 and 3.29 (page 35) propose; 

 “The Scale of the opportunity is such that a comprehensive plan 
should be explored to ensure the optimum regeneration benefit.  
As a substantial landowner, the Council has an instrumental role 
to play in driving forward a high-quality scheme in partnership 
with other landowners.  

 The role of the public realm will be critical to ensuring future 
development not only supports residential amenity but also 
provides permeable connections to the town centre.” 

2.6 The above quotes aim to encourage (where possible), the working 
together of adjacent landowners to bring forward a wider scheme that 
offers enhanced public realm and connectivity benefits. 

2.7 In the absence of taking a collaborative approach, landowners will 
inevitably focus on their own sites in isolation of neighbouring sites.  There 
are many entirely valid reasons why piecemeal development occurs, but 
regrettably, the opportunity to maximise the wider community benefits of 
enhanced public realm and connectivity are frequently lost. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 
3 Proposal 

3.1 As the adjacent landowner (as distinct to acting in its capacity as the Local 
Planning Authority), the Council has the opportunity to promote the 
benefits of a wider site development and has therefore adopted a 
collaborative approach with the developer of the SGN Gas Works site.  

3.2 To enable future site and public realm connectivity opportunities to be 
explored, it is proposed the two adjacent landowners (the Council and the 
Gas Works site developer) agree to the grant of a conditional easement 
across each site’s road infrastructure i.e. a reciprocal easement. 

3.3 The grant of a reciprocal easement would mutually benefit both 
landowners.  It would enable the Gas Works developer to design a 
scheme that could use the Council’s Rainbow Leisure Centre access road 
as the main entrance off East Street.  In return, the Council would have 
access across the Gas Work developer’s estate road infrastructure from 
the Council’s Hook Road Multi-Storey Car Park entrance. 

3.4 Further, a collaborative approach would remove the requirement for a 
duplicated main entrance to serve the Gas Holder site from Hook Road.  
By removing the need for separate, duplicated road infrastructure serving 
each site, the Gas Works site can be designed to maximise open space 
and connectivity across the wider combined site. 

3.5 This approach carries the further benefit of futureproofing the Council’s 
car park as the wider site’s road infrastructure will already have taken 
account of its potential redevelopment. 

3.6 As the easement will benefit both landowners equally, the Council’s 
obligation to seek best value is satisfied as any financial consideration 
otherwise payable is extinguished.  The purpose of the mutual easement 
is to facilitate community benefits that would otherwise be lost.       

3.7 It is proposed the mutual easement will be conditional on the Gas Works 
developer being granted planning permission for a proposed scheme.  
This will ensure the Council can discharge its two separate capacities as 
landowner and Local Planning Authority (LPA) i.e. the Council as 
landowner is protected as it will not complete the mutual easement before 
the Council as LPA, has determined the contribution to the wider site’s 
public realm and connectivity benefits. 

3.8 However, Members will be aware that a developer can appeal a decision 
to refuse planning permission.  It is possible that a scheme on the SGN 
Gas Works site provides the desired public realm connectivity benefits 
(promoted by this proposal) but is refused planning permission by the LPA 
for entirely different reasons.  The developer could then potentially attain 
planning permission following successful appeal obliging the Council (as 
landowner) to complete the mutual deed of easement. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 
3.9 Such a potential scenario is always a risk for the Council acting as LPA.  

However, this potential risk would equally occur if the SGN Gas Works 
site was redeveloped in isolation of the wider site i.e. without the Council 
(as landowner) agreeing to the collaborative approach adopted by the 
mutual deed of easement.  

3.10 It is for the above reason that the Council’s external solicitors be 
instructed to agree the mutual deed of easement, conditional on the 
successful determination of a future planning permission submitted by the 
developer of the Gas Works site. 

3.11 As the agreement is conditional, the cost of the Council’s legal expenses 
would be met by the Gas Works developer.  

4 Risk Assessment 

Legal or other duties 

4.1 Equality Impact Assessment 

4.1.1 Not applicable 

4.2 Crime & Disorder 

4.2.1 Not applicable 

4.3 Safeguarding 

4.3.1 Not applicable 

4.4 Dependencies 

4.4.1 The mutual easement will be conditional on the Gas Works 
developer being granted planning permission for a proposed 
scheme. 

4.5 Other 

4.5.1 The risk of a successful Appeal against the LPA is outlined in 
paragraphs 3.7 to 3.10. 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 The Council’s external legal costs would be met by the developer of the 
SGN Gas Works site. 

5.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: None arising from the content of this 
report. 

6 Legal Implications 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 
6.1 The council has a statutory duty under the Local Government Act 1972 

(“the Act”) not to dispose of its land or properties for a consideration less 
than the best that can reasonably be obtained, except with the express 
consent of the Secretary of State. However, legislation recognises that 
there may be circumstances where an authority considers it appropriate 
as in this case, the Head of Property & Regeneration considers that 
obtaining a reciprocal easement is of greater benefit to the council (as 
detailed at paragraph 3.6). 

6.2 It is proposed the mutual easement will be conditional on the Gas Works 
developer being granted planning permission for a proposed scheme. The 
risk of a successful Appeal is outlined in paragraphs 3.7 to 3.10. 

6.3 Legal Officer’s comments: Legal support has been and shall continue to 
be provided by external solicitors instructed by the Head of Property & 
Regeneration further to the agreement of the Head of Legal and 
Monitoring Officer. 

7 Policies, Plans & Partnerships 

7.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 
Opportunity and Prosperity, Effective Council. 

7.2 Service Plans: The matter is included within the current Service Delivery 
Plan. 

7.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: The proposal 
will facilitate the wider community benefits of enhanced public realm and 
connectivity across the potential redevelopment of the wider Hook Road 
Car Park and SGN Site 

7.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: Will be 
considered as part of any future planning applications submitted for the 
wider Hook Road Car Park and SGN Site.  

7.5 Partnerships: It is proposed to adopt a collaborative approach with the 
developer of the SGN Gas Works site to promote the wider community 
benefits as described in this report. 

8 Background papers 

8.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows: 

Previous reports: None 

Other papers: 

 Plan E – An Area Action Plan for Epsom Town Centre (2011) 

https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/residents/planning/planning-

policy/Plan%20E%20final%20version.pdf 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2

https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/residents/planning/planning-policy/Plan%20E%20final%20version.pdf
https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/residents/planning/planning-policy/Plan%20E%20final%20version.pdf


Strategy and Resources Committee  
19 June 2024  

 

 Regulation 18 Draft Local Plan 

https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/local-plan 

 Epsom Town Centre Masterplan 

https://epsom-ewell.inconsult.uk/ETCMP/ 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2

https://www.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/local-plan
https://epsom-ewell.inconsult.uk/ETCMP/

	Agenda
	2 Hook Road Car Park and SGN Site - Mutual Easement

